
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Anne Stokman, RN, President 

Timothy Benefield, Vice-President 
Becky Campo, Secretary  

Luis Avila, Treasurer  
(Vacant), Zone 4-Director 

 
PO Box 187, Patterson, CA 95363 

Phone (209) 892-8781 Fax (209) 892-3755 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 

Monday, June 3, 2024 @ 6:00 pm  
Regular Meeting Rescheduled from May 27, 2024 due to Memorial Day Holiday 

Del Puerto Health Center, 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Ste B, North Conference Room 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Matters under the jurisdiction of the Board and not on the posted agenda may be addressed by the 
general public at the beginning of the regular agenda. If you wish to speak on an item on the agenda, you are welcome to do so during 
consideration of the agenda item itself. If you wish to speak on a matter that does not appear on the agenda, you may do so during 
the Public Comment period; however, California law prohibits the Board from acting on any matter which is not on the posted agenda 
unless it is determined to be an emergency by the Board of Directors. Persons speaking during the Public Comment will be limited to 
five minutes. Depending on the number of persons wishing to speak, speaking time may be reduced to allow all public members to 
address the Board. Public comments must be addressed to the board through the President. Comments to individuals or staff are not 
permitted. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: These matters include routine financial and administrative actions and are identified with an asterisk (*). All 
items on the consent calendar will be voted on as a single action at the beginning of the meeting under the section titled “Consent 
Calendar” without discussion. If you wish to discuss an item on the Consent Calendar, please notify the Clerk of the Board prior to the 
beginning of the meeting or you may speak about the item during Public Comment Period. 

 
REGULAR CALENDAR: These items will be individually discussed and include all items not on the consent calendar, all public 
hearings, and correspondence. 

 
CLOSED SESSION: Is the portion of the meeting conducted in private without the attendance of the public or press to discuss certain 
confidential matters specifically permitted by the Brown Act. The public will be provided an opportunity to comment on any matter to 
be considered in closed session prior to the Board adjourning into closed session. 

 
ANY MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE DESIRING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON A MATTER ON THE AGENDA: Please raise your 
hand or step to the podium at the time the Board President announces the item. In order that interested parties have an opportunity 
to speak, any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of 5 minutes unless the President of the Board grants a longer 
period. 

 
BOARD AGENDAS AND MINUTES: Board agendas and minutes are typically posted on the Internet on Friday afternoons preceding 
a Monday meeting at the following website: https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings. 

 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District office at 875 E Street, Patterson, CA during normal business hours. Such documents are also available online, 
subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting, at the following website https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board- 
meetings. 

 
NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS: Board of Director meetings are conducted in English and translation to other 
languages is not provided. Please arrange for an interpreter, if necessary. 

 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (209) 892-8781. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 

 
Cell phones must be silenced or set in a mode to not disturb District business during the meeting. 

1/74

https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings
https://dphealth.specialdistrict.org/board-meetings


\\dphc-fs01\district office\board\2023\05-may\_2023-05-22 board meeting agenda.docx 5/17/2023 

DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Monday, June 03, 2024 @ 6:00 pm 
Del Puerto Health Center, 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Ste B, North Conference Room 

 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Board of Directors Roll Call 

4. Reading the Vision, Mission, and Value Statements 
Vision: “A locally cultivated, healthier community.” 
Mission: “To provide, promote, and partner in quality healthcare for all.” 
Values: “Compassion – Commitment – Excellence” 

5. Public Comment Period [Members of the public may address the Board on any issues on the Consent Calendar and 
items not listed on the agenda that are within the purview of the District. Comments on the agenda are made when the 
Board considers each item. Each speaker is allowed a maximum of five minutes. Board members may not comment or act 
on items not on the agenda.] 

6. Declarations of Conflict [Board members disclose any conflicts of interest with agenda items] 
 

7. Approval of Agenda Action 
[*Directors may request moving any consent calendar item to the regular calendar or change the order of the agenda items.] 

8. Consent Calendar* [Routine committee reports, minutes, and non-controversial items] Action 
A. *Approve Board Meeting Minutes – April 29, 2024 

9. Regular Calendar 
A. *Any Consent Calendar items moved to the Regular Calendar Action 
B. Resolution #2024-08 Opposition to CA Initiative 1935 Action 
C. Resolution #2024-09 to join CSDA Coalition Supporting HR 7525  Action 
D. *Resolution #2024-05 Calling for Election of Four Board Seats 
E. *Resolution #2024-06 Consolidating Election with Stanislaus County 
F. *Resolution #2024-07 Candidates Statements for Election 
G. *FY24-25 Capital Expense Requests Action 

 

10. Review of Written Reports (Directors may raise any questions they have)  Discussion 
A. Administration – Ms. Freese 
B. Ambulance – Mr. Willette 
C. Health Center – Ms. Benitez 
D. Human Resources – Mr. Trefault 
E. Legislative Watch List – Ms. Freese 

11. Strategic Planning 2024-2030 
A.  Review 9 Days-9 Weeks-9 Months Draft Plan  

12. Closed Session [Board of Directors may recess to closed session to discuss certain matters as legally permitted. 
Any action taken shall be reported in open session.] 

A. Gov’t Code section 54957.6 Conference with Labor Negotiator  
Employee Org: USW TEMSA Local 12911 
Negotiators:  David Ritchie, JD, Karin Freese 
  Paul Willette 

2/74



\\dphc-fs01\district office\board\2023\05-may\_2023-05-22 board meeting agenda.docx 5/17/2023 

DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Monday, June 03, 2024 @ 6:00 pm 
Del Puerto Health Center, 1700 Keystone Pacific Parkway, Ste B, North Conference Room 

 

 

13. Reconvene to Open Session – Report of Closed Session  

14. Director Correspondence, Comments, Future Agenda Items Information 

15. Upcoming Regular Board and Standing Committee Meeting Dates Information 
 Finance – Wed, July 24 @ 5:30 Board – Mon, July 29 @ 6:00 PM 
 Finance – Wed, August 21 @ 5:30 Board – Mon, August 26 @ 6:00 PM 
 Finance – Wed, Sept 25 @ 5:30 Board – Mon, Sep 30 @ 6:00 PM 

16. Adjourn 

3/74



BOARD OF DIRECTORS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 Anne Stokman, RN, President  
 Timothy Benefield, Vice-President 

Becky Campo, Secretary  
 Luis Avila, Treasurer 

  
  

 PO Box 187, Patterson, CA 95363 
 Phone (209) 892-8781 Fax (209) 892-3755 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, April 29, 2024 @ 6:00 pm 

 
1. Call to order at 6:06 pm by President, Anne Stokman 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 

Directors Present: President, Anne Stokman 
 Vice President, Timothy Benefield (absent) 
 Treasurer, Luis Avila 
 Secretary, Becky Campo 
 
Staff Present: CEO, Karin Freese 
 Ambulance Director, Paul Willette  
 HC Manager, Suzie Benitez 
 Clerk of the Board/Financial Accounting Manager, Maria Reyes-Palad 
 Clinical Ed and QI Manager, Jim Whitworth 
 Medical Director, Dr. Jose Rodriguez 
  
District Legal Council: Dave Ritchie, Cole Huber, LLP 
 

We have a quorum. 
 

4. Reading of the District’s Vision, Mission, and Value Statements: 
Vision: “A locally cultivated, healthier community.” 
Mission:  “To provide, promote, and partner in quality healthcare for all.” 
Values: “Compassion – Commitment – Excellence” 

 
5. Public Comment Period 

None 
 
6. Declarations of Conflict [Board members disclose any conflicts of interest with agenda items] 

None. 
 

7. Approval of Agenda: 
 M/S/C: To approve the agenda as posted. 

Directors Campo/Avila 
Ayes: Directors Avila, Stokman, Campo 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion: Passed 
 

8. Consent Calendar* [Routine committee reports, minutes, and non-controversial items] 
A. * Approve Board Meeting Minutes – March 25, 2024 
B. *Approve Finance Committee Meeting Minutes – February 21, 2024 
C. *Approve Financial Report of February 29, 2024 
D. *Approve Financial Report of March 31, 2024 

 
M/S/C. Approve the Consent Calendar. 

4/74



Board of Director Minutes – Date 
 Page 2 of 4 

o:\board\2024\04-apr 29\2024-04-29 board meeting minutes.docx 5/30/2024 

Directors Campo/Avila 
Ayes: Directors:  Avila, Stokman, Campo 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion: Passed 

 
9. Regular Calendar* [Members of the public may address the Board as the Board considers each 

item. Each speaker is allowed a maximum of five minutes.] 
   

A. No Items were moved from the consent calendar. 
 

B. CEO Evaluation Policy Review & Amendment 
                         A revised policy was presented which includes the formation of an ad hoc committee and                       

setting HR Manager responsibilities and timeframe of the evaluation process.  
 

M/S/C. To amend CEO Evaluation Policy Review & 
Amendment as per discussed. 
Directors Avila/Stokman 
Ayes: Directors:  Avila, Stokman, Campo 

  Nays: None 
  Abstain: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 

C. CEO Evaluation Committee Appointment 
Director Timothy Benefield was appointed to be in the CEO Evaluation Committee. 
 

M/S/C. To appoint Director Timothy Benefield to be 
in the CEO Evaluation Committee. 
Directors Avila/Stokman 
Ayes: Directors:  Avila, Stokman, Campo 

  Nays: None 
  Abstain: None 
  Motion: Passed 
 

D. Resolution 2024-04 Opening New Bank Account 
Ms. Reyes-Palad explained the need to find a new bank for an effective fund 

management system and internal control. A list of local banks with their interest offerings 

was presented.  The Board decided to have a new banking relationship with US Bank 

which has higher interest rates for the money market and short-term investment 

accounts.   

M/S/C. To open a new bank account with a local US 
Bank branch.    
Directors Avila/Campo 
Ayes: Directors:  Avila, Stokman, Campo 

  Nays: None 
  Abstain: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 
E. Amendment to Policy #3418 Employee Recruit New Employee Incentive 

Mr. Trefault explained the modification on Policy #3418. Referral incentive was increased 
to $450 for full-time and $250 for part-time referring employees. It will be paid in two 
installments; 50% payment is pay period after 90 calendar days from start date of the 
new employee, and full payment is pay period after 180th day.  

 
 

5/74



Board of Director Minutes – Date 
 Page 3 of 4 

o:\board\2024\04-apr 29\2024-04-29 board meeting minutes.docx 5/30/2024 

M/S/C. To adopt Amendment to Policy #3418 
Employee Recruit New Employee Incentive. 
Directors Avila/Benefield 
Ayes: Directors:  Avila, Stokman, Benefield 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion: Passed 

 
F. Approve EMS Medical Director Job Description  

Updated job description for the role of PDA Medical Director was presented and adopted 
as per discussed. No fiscal financial impact.    

 
G. Update: Imaging Services for the Community 

Ms. Freese reported updates on the Imaging Services that will be offered this June 2024.   
 

H. Update: New Logo 

New Logo will be launched on June 1, 2024.  

  

I. Review of Employee Satisfaction Survey 
Mr. Trefault presented the new Employee Engagement Survey form.  

 
  
10.       Review of Written Reports 

A. Administration – Ms. Freese  
B. Ambulance – Mr. Willette 
C. Health Center – Ms. Benitez 
D. Human Resources – Mr. Trefault 
E. Legislative Watch List – Ms. Freese 

 

11. Strategic Planning 
A. FY 2023-24 Next 90 Days Update (attached) 
B. Strategic Planning Board Retreat 

1) Warm-up – Wed, May 15, from 5:30 PM to 7:00 PM @ Javi’s Restaurant 
2) Retreat – Thu, May 16, from 10:00 AM to 4:00 PM @ Almondwood 

Restaurant 
 
Adjourned to Closed Session @ 7:17 pm 

 
12. Closed Session [Board of Directors may recess to closed session to discuss certain matters as 

legally permitted. Any action taken shall be reported in open session.] 
A.  Gov’t Code § 54957.6 Conference with Labor Negotiator 

Employee Organization: USW TEMSA                          

Local 12911  

Negotiators: David Ritchie, JD  

  Karin Freese & Paul Willette  

B. Health & Safety Code 321069(c)(2) District Health Care Trade Secret (i.e., 
necessary to initiate a new district service 
or program or add a district health care 
facility and, if prematurely disclosed, 
create a substantial probability of 
depriving the district of a substantial 
economic benefit). 

6/74



Board of Director Minutes – Date 
 Page 4 of 4 

o:\board\2024\04-apr 29\2024-04-29 board meeting minutes.docx 5/30/2024 

13. Reconvene to Open Session @ 7:44 pm - Report of Closed Session 
 

14. Director Correspondence, Comments, Future Agenda Items - None 

15. Upcoming Regular Board and Standing Committee Meeting Dates Information  
  Finance – Wed, Apr 24 @ 8:15 AM  Board – Mon, Apr 29 @ 6:00 PM 
   Strategic Planning Board Retreat Warm-up Wed, May 15th from 5:30-7:00 PM 
  Strategic Planning Board Retreat  Thu, May 16th from 10:00AM to 4:00 PM 
  Finance – Wed, May 22 @ 8:15 AM  Board – Mon, May 20 @ 6:00 PM 
  Finance – Wed, Jun 19 @ 8:15 AM   Board – Mon, June 24 @ 6:00 PM 
 
 
16. Adjourn @ 7:44 pm 

 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted:         
 Becky Campo, Board Secretary 
 
         
 Date Signed 

7/74



8/74



 

2024-08 RESOLUTION TO OPPOSE INITIATIVE 1935 (FORMERLY 21-0042A1) 

WHEREAS, an association representing California’s wealthiest corporations is spending 
millions of dollars to promote a deceptive proposition currently eligible for the November 2024 
statewide ballot; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed proposition, Initiative 1935 (formerly 21-0042A1), has received the 
official title: “LIMITS ABILITY OF VOTERS AND STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS TO 
RAISE REVENUES FOR GOVERNMENT SERVICES. INITIATIVE CONSTITUTIONAL 
AMENDMENT”; and 

WHEREAS, the measure would revise the Constitution to allow corporations to more easily sue 
public agencies, costing residents and taxpayers millions of dollars and disrupting essential 
services; and 

WHEREAS, the measure would retroactively invalidate billions of dollars in local government 
funding for essential services and infrastructure, including rural health clinic and emergency 
medical services, as well as to schools, fire and emergency response, law enforcement, public 
health, parks, libraries, housing, services to address homelessness and support mental health, 
and more; and 

WHEREAS, the measure limits voters’ rights, containing undemocratic provisions that would 
make it more difficult for local voters to pass measures to fund services, provisions that 
retroactively cancel measures recently passed by local voters, and provisions that prevent 
voters from passing advisory measures that provide direction on how they want their local tax 
dollars spent; and 

WHEREAS, the measure restricts the discretion and flexibility of locally elected boards to 
respond to the needs of their communities, and injects uncertainty into the financing and 
sustainability of critical infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, the measure constrains state and local officials’ ability to protect our environment, 
public health and safety, and our neighborhoods against those who violate the law; and 

WHEREAS, the measure is opposed by hundreds of local governments, firefighters and other 
first responders, healthcare providers, teachers, working families, and local elected officials.  

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Del Puerto Health Care District opposes Initiative 
1935 (formerly 21-0042A1); 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Del Puerto Health Care District will join the No on 
Initiative 1935 (formerly 21-0042A1) coalition, a growing coalition of local government, public 
safety, labor, infrastructure advocates, and other organizations throughout the state.  

We direct staff to email a copy of this adopted resolution to the California Special Districts 
Association at advocacy@csda.net. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this day 3 of June, 2024. 

9/74



 
 

Last Updated: February 23, 2024 
Page 1 of 5 

 

BALLOT INITIATIVE #1935 (FILED AS #21-0042A1) 

LIMITS ABILITY OF VOTERS AND STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS TO RAISE 

REVENUES FOR GOVERNMENT SERVICES. 

Eligible for November 5, 2024 California General Election Ballot 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
The purported “Taxpayer Protection and Government Accountability Act,” a statewide initiative 

measure sponsored by the California Business Roundtable (“CBRT”), would revise the state 

Constitution in a manner that could significantly undermine local control and disrupt the ability 

of state and local governments to provide essential services and infrastructure. If enacted, 

public agencies would face a drastic rise in litigation that could severely restrict their ability to 

meet essential services and infrastructure needs. 

 

Initiative 1935, previously labeled 21-0042A1, is often called the “CBRT Initiative”, a reference to 
its proponents, an entity representing California’s wealthiest corporations. A growing opposition 
coalition has dubbed the initiative the “Taxpayer Deception Act.” Additionally, a Committee to 
Oppose to Initiative 1935, sponsored by the League of California Cities, calls the initiative the 
“Corporate Tax Trick.” 
 

On February 1, 2023, California Secretary of State Shirley Weber issued a memo to all county 
clerks/registrars of voters announcing that proponents had filed the necessary number of valid 
signatures to make Initiative 1935 eligible for the November 5, 2024 General Election ballot. 
Proponents now have until June 27, 2024 to consider withdrawing the initiative before the 
Secretary of State officially certifies it for the ballot. 
 
In Fall of 2023, Governor Gavin Newsom, joined by the California State Legislature and former 
State Senate President pro Tem John Burton, filed an emergency petition to the California 
Supreme Court for a pre-election challenge to Initiative 1935. On November 29, 2023, the Court 
issued an order to show cause why the measure should not be removed from the ballot and 
established a schedule for briefing the court, which is expected to rule on the matter before the 
end of June. 
 
An amicus brief filed by CSDA and 10 other local government partners argues the measure is an 
unlawful revision of the state Constitution because of the ways the measure would redistribute 
authority between state and local governments and undermine essential functions of local 
governments. 
 
Moreover, Initiative 1935 is so poorly drafted that it raises many interpretive issues that will not be 
simply resolved without requiring extensive litigation after passage. What follows is a summary of 
provisions that could significantly impact local governments pending future legal rulings. 
 

10/74

https://www.cbrt.org/about-the-california-business-roundtable/
https://www.taxpayerdeceptionact.com/
https://stopcorporatetaxtrick.com/
https://elections.cdn.sos.ca.gov/ccrov/2023/february/23017jh.pdf
https://elections.cdn.sos.ca.gov/ccrov/2023/february/23017jh.pdf


 
 

Last Updated: February 23, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 

 

SUMMARY 

 

According to the Legislative Analyst’s Office (“LAO”) Ballot Initiative 21-0042A1 would result in 

“potentially substantially lower” state and local revenues, restricting the ability of local agencies 

and the State of California to fund services and infrastructure by: 

 

• Adopting new and stricter rules for raising taxes, fees, assessments, and property-related 

fees. 

• Revising the State Constitution, including portions of Propositions 13, 218, and 26 among 

other provisions, to the advantage of the initiative’s proponents and plaintiffs; creating new 

grounds to challenge these funding sources and disrupting fiscal certainty.  

• Restricting the ability of local governments to issue fines and penalties to corporations and 

property owners that violate local environmental, water quality, public health, public safety, 

fair housing, nuisance and other laws and ordinances. 

The initiative includes provisions that would retroactively void all state and local taxes or fees 

adopted after January 1, 2022 that do not adhere to the provisions of this initiative, unless the 

tax or fee is reenacted in compliance with the initiative within 12 months. Compliance with the 

initiative could require placement of the invalidated revenue on a ballot for two-thirds voter 

approval. This may also affect indexed fees that adjust over time for inflation or other factors. 

Effectively, it would allow voters throughout California to invalidate the prior actions of local 

voters, undermining local control and voter-approved decisions about investments needed in 

their communities. 

Specifically, including other provisions effecting the state government, the initiative would 
impact local agencies through revisions to the California Constitution as follows: 
 
Local Tax and Fee Authority to Provide Local Services 
 
Fees: 
 

• One potentially adverse interpretation of the measure may require that, with few 
exceptions, fees and charges shall not exceed the “actual cost” of providing the product or 
service for which the fee is charged. 

• “Actual cost” is defined as the “…minimum amount necessary...less other sources of 
revenue including, but not limited to taxes, other exempt charges, grants, and state 
or federal funds…”  

• The burden on the local government to prove the fee or charge does not exceed “actual 
cost” is heightened from a “preponderance of the evidence” to “clear and convincing 
evidence”.  

11/74

https://oag.ca.gov/system/files/initiatives/pdfs/21-0042A1%20%28Taxes%29.pdf


 
 

Last Updated: February 23, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 

 

• In addition to limiting fees and charges to the so-called “actual cost” to the local 

government for providing the service, fees and charges must also be “reasonable” to the 

payor; no definition is provided for this possible new subjective reasonableness test.  

• Defines all sources of revenue as either taxes or “exempt charges.” 

• Lists Article XIIID charges in Proposition 218 under the definition of “exempt” charges 
subjecting them to potential litigation.  

• Exposes previously established fees indexed to inflation or other metrics to new standards 
and legal challenges. 

• Adds to the Constitution a requirement for a board action to adopt, enact, create, establish, 

collect, increase, or extend any and all fees.  

 

Taxes: 
 

• Increases the threshold for voters to pass a local special tax initiative placed on the ballot 
by voters from a simple majority to a two-thirds majority, likely to address concerns over the 
2017 California Supreme Court decision in California Cannabis Coalition v. City of Upland.  

• Requires voter approval when an expansion of boundaries extends existing taxes or fees to 
new territory. 

• New taxes can be imposed only for a specific duration.  
 
Fines and Levees: 
 

• Interferes with local enforcement efforts, by making it more difficult to impose fines and 

penalties for state and local law violations related to activities such as water discharge, 

waste recycling, weed abatement, fireworks, and housing code violations and unlawful 

commercial marijuana sales, just to name a few. The measure converts administratively 

imposed fines and penalties into taxes unless a new, undefined, and ambiguous 

“adjudicatory due process” is followed. 

 
Litigation Exposure 
 

• Significantly increases a public agency’s burden of proof from “preponderance of evidence” 
to “clear and convincing evidence” to prove compliance with the new fee requirements. By 
changing evidence standards to favor corporations suing public agencies, the initiative will 
promote costly litigation.  

o The local government would bear the burden of proving by clear and convincing 
evidence that a levy, charge or exaction is an “exempt charge” and not a tax.  

• By enacting a new requirement that all fees must be “reasonable” to the payor but offering 
no definition as to what “reasonable” means, the initiative may provide a new avenue to 
challenge fees by enabling a plaintiff to claim a fee is not “reasonable” even if the fee meets 
the “actual cost” of service. 

12/74



 
 

Last Updated: February 23, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 

 

• Prop. 218 currently requires fees cover the reasonable cost of service. This initiative, 
however, may be viewed by some proponents as a revision to the Constitution that would 
require the near-impossible standard of predicting actual costs years into the future. To 
compound this challenge, the new standard also factors in the receipt of external revenues 
that are constantly shifting and typically outside the control of the local agency. It defines 
“actual costs” as: 

o  “(i) the minimum amount necessary to reimburse the government for the cost of 
providing the service or product to the payor, and (ii) where the amount charged is 
not used by the government for any purpose other than reimbursing that cost. In 
computing “actual cost” the maximum amount that may be imposed is the actual 
cost less all other sources of revenue including, but not limited to taxes, other 
exempt charges, grants, and state or federal funds received to provide such service 
or product.” 

• The initiative will foster endless litigation challenging local fees claiming they are not the 
“minimum amount necessary”. For instance: 

o Do roads need to be paved every 10 years or 50 years?  
o Does infrastructure need to be upgraded or replaced or not improved at all?  
o What is the minimum emergency response time necessary? 

 
IMPACTS 
 

• Could prevent new fees or assessments to fund water, sewer, trash, fire protection, parks 
and recreation, and other essential services and infrastructure. 

o Places billions of dollars in local government fee and charge revenues at heightened 
legal peril. 

• Jeopardizes the public health and safety of communities by cutting off new revenue 
intended to pay for essential local services and infrastructure. 

o Substantially increases the legal and administrative cost of public infrastructure 
financing. 

• With billions of dollars in deferred maintenance and unmet needs for California’s 
infrastructure, exacerbates the neglect and deterioration of our roads, dams, waterways, 
and other facilities. 

• By limiting revenues to the “minimum amount necessary”, imposes a “race-to-the-bottom” 
in California that will halt investment in technological advancements that future generations 
will depend upon. 

• Prevents critical investments in climate adaptation and community resilience to address 
drought, flooding, and wildfire as well as reduce emissions and harmful pollutants. 

• Exposes taxpayers to a new wave of costly litigation, limits the discretion and flexibility of 
locally elected boards to respond to the needs of their communities, and injects uncertainty 
into the financing and sustainability of critical infrastructure. 

• Restricting local services and infrastructure to the lowest and minimum amount possible will 
disproportionately impact the most underserved communities the hardest.  

 

13/74



 
 

Last Updated: February 23, 2024 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 
SUPPORT 
 

• California Business Roundtable (CBRT) – Sponsor 
o Direct contributors to Initiative 1935 include, but are not limited to: 

▪ AMR Holdco, Inc., private ambulance company based in Colorado 
▪ Michael K. Hayde, Including Western National Group and Affiliated 

Entities 
▪ Kilroy Realty 
▪ Hudson Pacific Properties and Affiliated Entities 
▪ Douglas Emmett Properties, LP and Affiliated Entities 
▪ Shorenstein Realty Services and Affiliated Entities 

o Financial contributors to the CBRT Issues PAC include, but are not limited to: 
▪ Aera Energy 
▪ Albertsons Safeway 
▪ Blackstone Real Estate Partners 
▪ California Business PAC, Sponsored by CalChamber 
▪ Dart Container 
▪ Howard Jarvis Taxpayers Association 
▪ Majestic Realty 
▪ Pacific Ethanol 
▪ PEPSICO 
▪ Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers of America 
▪ Sempra Energy 
▪ State Farm Insurance 
▪ Sutter Health 
▪ 7-Eleven 

 
OPPOSITION 
 

• Alliance for a Better California 

• AFSCME California 

• CalCities (League of California Cities) 

• California Alliance for Jobs 

• California Contract Cities Association 

• California Professional Firefighters 

• California Special Districts Association 

• California State Association of Counties 

• California State Council of Laborers 

• Rebuild SoCal Partnership 

• SEIU California 

• Nearly 200 local agencies, including over 100 special districts 

14/74



Approximately 35,000 special districts are local governments providing critical infrastructure and essential services in 
thousands of communities across the country. They exist when a community demands a service that another unit of 
government is not otherwise providing. These agencies are established and locally governed under an enabling act or 
special act of a state to provide a limited and specific set of public services. 

 
 

  

 
 
 

Special District Grant Accessibility Act
Sponsored by Representative Pat Fallon (R-TX)

& Representative Brittany Pettersen (D-CO)
Introduced: March 5, 2024

The Solution: H.R. 7525The Problem 

Connect & Engage on Solutions 

Despite the significant presence of special districts in the U.S., 

Federal law lacks a consistent definition and reference 
to special purpose units of local government. 

As a result, special districts: 

• May have difficulties directly accessing funding opportunities.

• Are commonly omitted as eligible in the definitions of “local
government” for proposed legislation and laws intended to
assist all local governments.

• Are mistaken for small businesses or nonprofit corporations.

• Lack official population figures, as they are not federally
recognized as “geographic units of government.”

NSDC is the only national organization 
representing and advocating for all types of 

special districts at the federal level. 

The Special District Grant Accessibility Act

• Requires Federal agencies to recognize
special districts as local government for
the purpose of Federal financial
assistance determinations.

• Codifies in Federal law a first-ever,
formal definition of "special district."

“Special District” Defined 

H.R. 7525 - The Special District Grant Accessibility Act, defines "special district" as follows:

The term “special district” means a political subdivision of a State, with specified boundaries 
and significant budgetary autonomy or control, created by or pursuant to the laws of the 
State, for the purpose of performing limited and specific governmental or proprietary 
functions that distinguish it as a significantly separate entity from the administrative 
governance structure of any other form of local government unit within a State.

Common Services Provided 

Water & Wastewater 

Irrigation 

Fire Protection 

Ambulance 

Transit 

Road & Highway 

Airport 

Healthcare & Hospital 

Park & Recreation 

Electricity 

Library 

Cemetery 

Mosquito Control 

Resource 
Conservation 

Port/Harbor/ 
Navigation 

Quick Facts 

35,000 
Special District 
Governments 

17% 
All local government 

revenue 
(less school districts)

50 states 

jk@paragonlobbying.com

(877) 924-2732

WWW.NATIONALSPECIALDISTRICTS.ORG 

15/74



16/74



 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT  
Board Meeting –June 3, 2024   

 
Item # 9D, 9E, 9F -  Election Resolution and Consolidation   Page 1 of 2 
 
Department: Administration     CEO Concurrence: YES 
 
Consent Calendar:   NO      4/5 Vote Required:      NO 
 
  
SUBJECT:   Calling District Election and Requesting to Consolidate 
 
STAFF REPORT:   
 
SUMMARY  
The Board of Directors is requested to adopt the resolutions necessary for the District’s 
municipal election to be called and consolidated with the 2024 General Statewide Election that is 
conducted by Stanislaus County Elections Department.  
 
DISCUSSION  
The General Municipal Election for the Del Puerto Health Care District is to be held in 
consolidation with the General Statewide Election on November 5, 2024, for the election of four 
(4) Members of the Board of Directors in Zones 1, 2, 3, and 4.  Zones 1 and 2 are for full four-
year terms expiring in 2028, Zone 3 and 4 are to fill the remainder of four-year terms, (one (Zone 
3) currently held by appointment and one (Zone 4) currently vacant.  
 
Notice of Election  
The Notice of Election must be published not earlier than the 127th day (July 1) and not later 
than the 113th day (July 15) before the municipal election. The Notice of Election must contain 
the date of the election, the offices for which candidates may file, the qualifications required, the 
candidate filing period (July 15 th – August 9 th), and where the candidate shall file their 
nomination papers. It also must also contain notification of any ballot measures, a synopsis of the 
measure, and the deadline set for arguments, if the measure is placed on the ballot before the 
Notice of Election is published.  
 
Call & Consolidation  
It is required that the Board Clerk officially set the election date and request the Board of 
Supervisors to issue instructions to the Stanislaus County Election Department regarding 
consolidation with the Statewide General Election and to authorize certain procedures for the 
conduct of said election.  
 
Candidate Statement  
A candidate may file a Candidate Statement of Qualifications to be printed in the sample ballot, 
not to exceed 200 words. A local agency may estimate the total cost of printing the statement and 
require each candidate filing a statement to pay in advance their estimated pro rate share as a 
condition of having a statement included in the voter’s pamphlet. The cost of the candidate 

17/74



 

 

statements is estimated based upon information from the Stanislaus County Elections 
Department which oversees the typesetting of the voter pamphlet.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT - TBD 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2024-05: A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA, CALLING AND 
GIVING NOTICE OF THE HOLDING OF A GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO 
BE HELD IN THE DISTRICT ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2024, FOR THE 
ELECTION OF CERTAIN OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT AS REQUIRED BY THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA RELATING TO 
CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS  

 
2. Adopt Resolution No. 2024-06: A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA, REQUESTING 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF STANISLAUS TO 
CONSOLIDATE A GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD TUESDAY, 
NOVEMBER 5, 2024, WITH THE STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION TO BE 
HELD ON THE DATE PURSUANT TO § 10403 OF THE ELECTIONS CODE  

 
3. Adopt Resolution No. 2024-07: A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING 
REGULATIONS FOR CANDIDATES FOR ELECTIVE OFFICE PERTAINING TO 
CANDIDATE STATEMENTS SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS AT A GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION.  

 
ATTACHMENTS – Three Resolutions 

18/74



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, CALLING AND GIVING NOTICE OF THE HOLDING 
OF A GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD IN THE DISTRICT ON 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2024, FOR THE ELECTION OF CERTAIN 
DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD AS REQUIRED BY THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA RELATING TO CALIFORNIA SPECIAL 
DISTRICTS 

======================================================================== 
 

 WHEREAS, under the provisions of the laws relating to Special Districts in the State of 
California, a General Municipal Election shall be held on Tuesday, November 5, 2024, for the 
election of Directors for Zones 1 (4-year term), 2 (4-year term), 3 (2-years expiring 2026, currently 
filled by appointment), and 4 (2-years expiring 2026, vacant). 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND 
ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That, pursuant to the requirements of the laws of the State of California 
relating to Special Districts within said State, there is called and ordered to be held in the Del 
Puerto Health Care District, California, on Tuesday, November 5, 2024, a General Municipal 
Election for the purpose of electing Directors for Zones 1 (4-year term), 2 (4-year term), 3 (2-years 
expiring 2026, currently filled by appointment), and 4 (2-years expiring 2026, currently vacant). 
 
 SECTION 2. That the ballots to be used at the election shall be in form and content as 
required by law. 
 
 SECTION 3. That the Clerk of the Board of the Del Puerto Health Care District is 
authorized, instructed, and directed to coordinate with the County of Stanislaus Registrar of 
Voters to procure and furnish any and all official ballots, notices, printed matter, and all supplies, 
equipment, and paraphernalia that may be necessary in order to properly and lawfully conduct 
the election. 
 
 SECTION 4. That the polls for the election shall be open at seven o’clock a.m. of the day 
of the election and shall remain open continuously from that time until eight o’clock p.m. of the 
same day when the polls shall be closed, pursuant to Election Code §10242, except as provided 
in §14401 of the Elections Code of the State of California. 
 
 SECTION 5. That in all particulars not recited in this resolution, the election shall be held 
and conducted as provided by law for holding municipal elections. 
 
 SECTION 6. That notice of the time and place of holding the election is given and the 
Clerk of the Board is authorized, instructed, and directed to give further or additional notice of the 
election, in time, form, and manner as required by law. 
 
 SECTION 7. That the Clerk of the Board shall certify to the passage and adoption of this 
resolution and enter it into the book of original resolutions. 
 
Dated: June 3, 2024 
======================================================================== 

 
I hereby certify that Resolution No. XXXX was passed and adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District in a regular meeting held June 3, 2024 by 
the following vote: 

19/74



 
 AYES:   
 
 NOES:   
 
 ABSENT:   
 
 ABSTAIN:   
 
     

   
APPROVED AS  TO  FORM:   

 

David G. Ritchie, District General Counsel   
 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Anne Stokman, Board President  

 ATTEST:    

 

Maria Reyes-Palad, Clerk of the Board  
     
 
 

 

20/74



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE COUNTY OF STANISLAUS TO CONSOLIDATE A GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2024, WITH 
THE STATEWIDE GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON THE DATE 
PURSUANT TO § 10403 OF THE ELECTIONS CODE 

======================================================================== 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District called an 
Election to be held on November 5, 2024, for the purpose of election of four (4) members of the 
Board of Directors (one each from Zones 1 (four-year term), 2 (four-year term), 3 (2 years 
remaining in term expiring 2026), and 4 (2 years remaining in term expiring in 2026)); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable that the Election for District Board positions be consolidated 
with the Statewide General Election to be held on the same date and that within the District the 
precincts, polling places, and elections officers of the two elections be the same, and that the 
county election department of the County of Stanislaus canvass the returns of the General 
Municipal Election and that the election be held in all respects as if it were only one election. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT, CALIFORNIA, DOES RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. That, pursuant to the provisions of §10403 of the Elections Code, the 
Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors is hereby requested to consent and agree to the 
consolidation of a General Municipal Election with a Statewide General Election on Tuesday, 
November 5, 2024, for the purpose of election of four (4) Members of the District’s Board of 
Directors (Zones 1 (four-year term), 2 (four-year term), 3 (2 years remaining in term expiring 
2026), and 4 (2 years remaining in term expiring in 2026)).  
 
 SECTION 2. That the County election department is authorized to canvass the returns of 
the General Municipal Election. The election shall be held in all respects as if it were only one 
election, and only one form of the ballot shall be used. The election will be held and conducted 
in accordance with the provisions of the laws regulating the statewide or special election. 
 
 SECTION 3. That the Board of Supervisors is requested to issue instructions to the 
County election department to take any and all steps necessary for the holding of the 
consolidated election. 
 
 SECTION 4. That the Board of Directors of the District recognizes that additional costs 
will be incurred by the County by reason of this consolidation and agrees to reimburse the 
County for any costs upon presentation to the District of a properly approved invoice. 
 
 SECTION 5. That the Clerk of the Board is directed to forward without delay to the 
Board of Supervisors and the County Registrar of Voters' offices a certified copy of this 
resolution. 
 
 SECTION 6. That the Clerk of the Board shall certify to the passage and adoption of 
this resolution and enter it into the book of original resolutions. 

21/74



 
Dated: June 3, 2024 
======================================================================== 
I hereby certify that Resolution No. XXXX was passed and adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District in a regular meeting held June 3, 2024 
by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   
 
 NOES:   
 
 ABSENT:   
 
 ABSTAIN:   
 
     

   
APPROVED AS  TO  FORM:   

 

David G. Ritchie, District General Counsel   
 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Anne Stokman, Board President   

 ATTEST:    

 

Maria Reyes-Palad, Clerk of the Board   
     
 

22/74



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT, ADOPTING REGULATIONS FOR CANDIDATES 
FOR ELECTIVE OFFICE PERTAINING TO CANDIDATES’ STATEMENTS 
SUBMITTED TO THE VOTERS AT AN ELECTION TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, 
NOVEMBER 5, 2024 

======================================================================== 
 
 WHEREAS, §13307 of the Elections Code of the State of California provides that the 
governing body of any local agency adopt regulations pertaining to materials prepared by any 
candidate for a municipal election, including costs of the candidate’s statement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE DEL PUERTO HEALTH 
CARE DISTRICT, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS. That pursuant to §13307 of the Elections Code 
of the State of California, each candidate for elective office to be voted for at an election to be 
held in the Del Puerto Health Care District on November 5, 2024, may prepare a candidate’s 
statement on an appropriate form provided by the Clerk of the Board. The statement may 
include the name, age, and occupation of the candidate and a brief description of no more than 
200 words of the candidate’s education and qualifications expressed by the candidate himself or 
herself. The statement shall not include party affiliation of the candidate, nor membership or 
activity in partisan political organizations. The statement shall be filed in typewritten form in the 
office of the Clerk of the Board at the time the candidate’s nomination papers are filed. The 
statement may be withdrawn, but not changed, during the period for filing nomination papers 
and until 5:00 p.m. of the next working day after the close of the nomination period. 
 
 SECTION 2. FOREIGN LANGUAGE POLICY. 
 

A. Pursuant to the Federal Voting Rights Act, candidates’ statements will be translated 
into all languages required by the County of Stanislaus. The County is required to 
translate candidates’ statements into Spanish. 

B. The County will print and mail voter information guides and candidates’ statements to 
all voters in English and Spanish. The County will make the voter information guides 
and candidates’ statements in the required languages available at all polling places, 
on the County’s website, and in the Election Official’s office. 
 

 SECTION 3. PAYMENT.   

A. Translations: 

1. The candidate shall be required to pay for the cost of translating the candidate’s 
statement into any required foreign language as specified in (A) and (B) of 
Section 2 above pursuant to Federal and/or State law. 

2. The candidate shall be required to pay for the cost of translating the candidate’s 
statement into any foreign language that is not required as specified in (A) and 
(B) of Section 2 above, pursuant to Federal and/or State law, but is requested as 
an option by the candidate. 

B. Printing and mailing: 

23/74



1. The candidate shall be required to pay for the cost of printing and mailing the 
candidate’s statement in English in the voters’ pamphlet. 

2. The candidate shall be required to pay for the cost of printing and mailing the 
candidate’s statement in a foreign language required in (A) of Section 2 above in 
the voters’ pamphlet. 

 
The Clerk of the Board shall estimate the total cost of printing, handling, translating, and mailing 
the candidate’s statements filed pursuant to this section, including costs incurred as a result of 
complying with the Voting Rights Act of 1965 (as amended), and require each candidate filing a 
statement to pay in advance to the local agency his or her estimated pro rata share as a 
condition of having his or her statement included in the voters’ pamphlet. In the event the 
estimated payment is required, the estimate is just an approximation of the actual cost that 
varies from one election to another election and may be significantly more or less than the 
estimate, depending on the actual number of candidates filing statements. Accordingly, the 
Clerk of the Board is not bound by the estimate and may, on a pro rata basis, bill the candidate 
for additional actual expense or refund any excess paid depending on the final actual cost. In 
the event of underpayment, the Clerk of the Board may require the candidate to pay the balance 
of the cost incurred. In the event of overpayment, the Clerk of the Board shall prorate the 
excess amount among the candidates and refund the excess amount paid within 60 days of 
receiving the invoice from the Stanislaus County Registrar of Voters. 
 
 SECTION 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS. No candidate will be permitted to include 
additional materials in the voter information guide. 

 SECTION 5. That the Clerk of the Board shall provide each candidate or the 
candidate’s representative a copy of this resolution at the time nominating petitions are issued. 

 SECTION 6. That this resolution shall apply only to the election to be held on 
November 5, 2024, and shall then be repealed. 

 SECTION 7. That the Clerk of the Board shall certify to the passage and adoption of 
this resolution and enter it into the book of original resolutions. 
 
Dated: June 3, 2024 
======================================================================== 
I hereby certify that Resolution No. XXXX was passed and adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the Del Puerto Health Care District in a regular meeting held June 3, 2024 
by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   
 
 NOES:   
 
 ABSENT:   
 
 ABSTAIN:   
 
  

    

24/74



   
APPROVED AS  TO  FORM:   

 

David G. Ritchie, District General Counsel   
 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Anne Stokman, Board President   

 ATTEST:    

 

Maria Reyes-Palad, Clerk of the Board   
     
 
        

 

25/74



26/74



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board Meeting –  June 03, 2024 

Item # Title FY24-25 Capital Expense Requests Page 1 of 2 

 

o:\board\2024\06-jun 03\9g fy24-25 capital requests coversheet.docxo:\board\2024\06-jun 03\9g fy24-25 capital 
requests coversheet.docx 5/31/2024 

Department:  Chief Executive Office CEO Concurrence:   Yes  

Consent Calendar: Yes 4/5 Vote Required: No 

 

 

SUBJECT:   FY 2024-25 Capital Expense Budget Request  

STAFF REPORT: Presented for Board discussion and consideration are the FY 2024 

-25 capital expense budget proposal.  

DISTRICT PRIORITY: Transparent financial operations 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total capital expenses of $101,386 ($98,000 for Ambulance and 

$3,386 for Health Center).  

STAFFING IMPACT: None 

CONTACT PERSON: Karin Freese and Maria Reyes-Palad 

ATTACHMENT(S): FY24-25 Departments Capital Expense Requests 

 

 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION: 

 

ROLL CALL REQUIRED: YES / NO      

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move the Board of Directors to approve FY24-25 Capital Expense 

Budget Requests.  

 

Motion Made By Motion Second 

Director Avila   

Director Campo   

Director Benefield   

Director Stokman   

[vacant]   

 

Roll Call Vote Aye No Abstain Absent 

Director Avila     

Director Campo     

Director Benefield     

Director Stokman     

[vacant]     

 

27/74



BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DEL PUERTO HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

Board Meeting –  June 03, 2024 

Item # Title FY24-25 Capital Expense Requests Page 2 of 2 

 

o:\board\2024\06-jun 03\9g fy24-25 capital requests coversheet.docxo:\board\2024\06-jun 03\9g fy24-25 capital 
requests coversheet.docx 5/31/2024 

 

28/74



29/74



30/74



31/74



32/74



33/74



34/74



35/74



36/74



37/74



38/74



39/74



40/74



41/74



42/74



43/74



44/74



45/74



46/74



47/74



48/74



49/74



50/74



51/74



52/74



53/74



54/74



55/74



56/74



57/74



58/74



59/74



60/74



61/74



62/74



Executive Summary Snapshot Revenue Cycle Performance

04/30/24 03/31/24 12 Month Avg 04/30/24 03/31/24 12 Month Avg

Gross Charges Month Ending Charges by Class

$878,884.00 $941,687.00 $871,499.08 04/30/24 Medicare $346,384.00 $413,722.00 $336,207.42
Medicaid $300,885.00 $283,010.00 $292,814.17
Insurance $160,400.00 $209,120.00 $158,680.00
Self Pay $71,215.00 $35,835.00 $83,797.50
Facility

Payor Class Current Month Previous Month 12 Month Avg

Transports & Billable Dry Runs

202 226 198 04/30/24 03/31/24 12 Month Avg

Collections Collection % Gross Collections by Class

$228,345.00 $298,937.00 $296,097.00 26.0% 31.7% 34.0%
Medicare $78,880.00 $72,658.00 $52,794.75
Medicaid $28,667.00 $79,876.00 $91,588.17
Insurance $109,541.00 $140,016.00 $140,656.00
Self Pay $11,257.00 $6,387.00 $11,058.08
Facility

Payor Class Current Month Previous Month 12 Month Avg

Contractual Adjustments Accounted for Funds

$535,329.00 $585,290.00 $513,834.67 86.9% 88.6% 95.4%

Write Offs Aging by Range Transports by Class

$49,817.00 $203,075.00 $76,537.75
0 - 30 $239,411.00 $255,499.00 $249,239.75
31 - 60 $308,508.00 $185,390.00 $255,423.17
61 - 90 $119,420.00 $148,796.00 $134,547.17
91 - 120 $45,842.00 $99,242.00 $65,726.50
120+ $27,056.00 -$16,072.00 $120,770.83

Payor Class Current Month Previous Month 12 Month Avg

Medicare 75 90 73
Medicaid 68 70 66
Insurance 40 49 34
Self Pay 19 17 25
Facility

Payor Class Current Month Previous Month 12 Month Avg

Average Daily Revenue

$29,296.13 $30,377.00 $29,049.97

Revenue Per Transport Aging Payor Class Pay Mix Transports

$4,350.91 $4,166.76 $4,394.11
Medicare $110,178.00 $91,887.00 $91,985.08
Medicaid $6,491.00 -$3,590.00 $57,629.67
Insurance $378,577.00 $325,554.00 $346,953.50
Self Pay $240,527.00 $254,598.00 $325,353.25
Facility $4,465.00 $4,405.00 $4,294.69

Payor Class Current Month Previous Month 12 Month Avg

Medicare 37.1% 39.8% 36.8%
Medicaid 33.7% 31.0% 33.4%
Insurance 19.8% 21.7% 17.4%
Self Pay 9.4% 7.5% 12.4%
Facility 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Payor Class Current Month Previous Month 12 Month Avg

Collections Per Transport

$1,130.42 $1,322.73 $1,492.93

Contractual Allowance Per Transport Days Sales Outstanding Pay Mix Aging

$2,650.14 $2,589.78 $2,590.76 25 23 28
Medicare 14.9% 13.7% 11.1%
Medicaid 0.9% -0.5% 7.0%
Insurance 51.1% 48.4% 42.0%
Self Pay 32.5% 37.8% 39.4%
Facility 0.6% 0.7% 0.5%

Payor Class Current Month Previous Month 12 Month Avg

5/20/24, 11:17 AM Patterson Monthly KPI Dashboard - Smartsheet.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/dashboards/gJFjw4xQM6H7W6VfjjxMrfXChCrQ6fjwH924cQq1 1/2

63/74



5/20/24, 11:17 AM Patterson Monthly KPI Dashboard - Smartsheet.com

https://app.smartsheet.com/dashboards/gJFjw4xQM6H7W6VfjjxMrfXChCrQ6fjwH924cQq1 2/2

64/74



Health Center Report April 2024/ Suzie Benitez 
 

Encounter April  2024 
Primary Care Vacation/Sick/CME time off 
Provider Hours worked Encounters 
Rodriguez 144                                                                               424 
Singh 144                                                                               489 
Barragan 112                                                                               305 
Primary Total 400                                                                             1,218 
Mental Health Encounters 
Herrera                                                                                 102 
   
Saturday Clinics                                                                                 0 
HC Total Encounters  1,320 

Urgent Care Clinic Encounters (Tuesday and Thursday) 
Date Time Encounters 
February 5:00pm-9:00pm 170 

March 5:00pm-9:00pm 134 

April 5:00pm-9:00pm 133 

   

April-Health Net Provider Partnership Meeting -Trend Report 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

            
         

                     

      
    

          

         
        
          

           
           

    
        

                      
                            
                        

                                                                   
                                    

            
           

    

                                                                                    
                          

             
                   
                

    

                       
                         

                                                                    
                    

     
                  
        

       

                         
      

                                                                     
                         

            
         

    

                                                            
   

              
         

    

                                                                   
                                                                  
                                                                 

  

         
                  
            

      

                                                                    
                                                         

               
            
           

    

                                                              
                       

  
               
        

    

                                                                      

  

                     
                 
                   
      

      

                           

  

                     
                   
                   
      

      

  
                                  

65/74



           Plan of April-Health San Joaquin Provider Partnership Meeting -Trend Report 

 
EVENTS in April: 

Staff training Fluoride Varnish Application-Completed the rest of the staff 

 

EVENTS in May: 

Thursday, May 2nd- HPSJ-Alinea Mobile Event/Mammography- On-site from 9:00am-4:00pm-TOTAL SEEN 32 

Wednesday, May 22nd-Sports Physicals for Patterson High School TOTAL SEEN 225 students 

Saturday, May 25th- Sports Physicals to the Patterson Junior Tigers TOTAL SEEN 58 students 

Friday-Sunday, May 31st-June 2nd- Apricot Fiesta 

 

Board Report April 2024 

 

            

66/74



Human Resources Status Report May 2024 

By Robert Trefault, Human Resources Manager 

 

The Del Puerto Health Care District’s Human Resources Department has been actively 

involved in the District’s growth and employee engagement.  Over the past six months, 12 new 

team members, four of which reside in Patterson, have been brought on including a strategic 

hiring for the soon-to-open medical imaging in our clinic.   Recruitment continues with the intent 

of meeting the District’ goals.   

 

Human Resources has been updating and developing policies to improve employee 

morale, increase awareness of changes in rules or laws, and engage employees in recruiting 

efforts.  The District’s updated Referral Program Policy was published, and we have already 

hired two amazing employee referrals for the Health Center.  Changes to the PTO and ESL 

policies are being worked on to align with recent changes in California law. Additionally, our 

Safety program is being strengthened through upcoming changes in the policy and practice.  We 

are looking forward to finalizing new Buddy and Mentor programs to help integrate new 

employees and grow current staff into leaders.  We anticipate many of these policies will be 

ready for review by the end of June, although implementation of some policies may wait until 

after a new MOU is ratified. 

 

We are also working on arranging an “inaugural” Employee Picnic to show the District’s 

appreciation of our employees and their families.  This event is planned at the Twin Rivers 

Saloon on Saturday, July 13 from 12 – 4 pm. We are anxious to bring the board, ambulance, 

health center, and administration with their immediate families together to enjoy the weather and 

grow as a team.  

 

67/74



68/74



69/74



70/74



Board Legislative Update Report
LegiScan Monitor Report

May 31, 2024
State Bill # Summary Pending Sponsors Status

CA AB817 An act to add and repeal Section 54953.05 of the Government Code, relating to
local government.

In Senate Local
Government
Committee

Pacheco, B.; Wilson, L.

[Hearing: Jun 5 @ 9:30 am in
1021 O Street, Room 2200]

2024-05-29 / Engrossed
From committee chair, with
author's amendments: Amend,
and re-refer to committee. Read
second time, amended, and
re-referred to Com. on L. GOV.

CA AB1843

This bill would require an EAP to provide up to 20 mental health treatments per
issue per calendar year, and would include post-traumatic stress disorder in the
definition of â��issueâ�� for purposes of those provisions. The bill would also
require an EAP to schedule an appointment with a mental health treatment provider
within 48 hours, upon request of an emergency ambulance employee.
This bill would require an emergency ambulance provider to offer to all emergency
ambulance employees, upon the employeeâ��s request, peer-to-peer services to
provide peer representatives who are available to come to the aid of their fellow
employees on a broad range of emotional or professional issues. The bill would
require a peer support program to be implemented through a labor-management
agreement negotiated separately from a collective bargaining agreement covering
affected employees.

In Senate Rules
Committee Rodriguez, F.; Cervantes, S.

2024-05-24 / Engrossed
In Senate. Read first time. To
Com. on RLS. for assignment.

CA AB2095 An act to add Section 6009 to the Government Code, relating to public notice.
In Senate
Judiciary
Committee

Maienschein, B. 2024-05-29 / Engrossed
Referred to Com. on JUD.

CA AB2859
This bill would authorize an EMS provider to establish a peer support and crisis
referral program to provide a network of peer representatives available to aid fellow
employees on emotional or professional issues.

In Senate Health
Committee

Patterson, J.; Alvarado-Gil, M.;
Alvarado-Gil, M.

2024-05-29 / Engrossed
Referred to Coms. on HEALTH
and JUD.

CA SB1180

This bill would require a health care service plan contract or health insurance policy
issued, amended, or renewed on or after January 1, 2025, to include coverage for
services provided by a community paramedicine program, a triage to alternate
destination program, and a mobile integrated health program.

In Assembly
Health
Committee

Ashby, A. 2024-05-28 / Engrossed
Referred to Com. on HEALTH.

If you have any questions please contact: Karin Freese at 209-894-8201 or karin.freese@dphealth.org 1

71/74



PROPOSED 999 ACTION PLAN FOR DPHCD FROM MAY 16, 2024 1 

 

 

 

Strategic Thinking and Planning 2024 

999 Action Plans 
 
Leadership Conclusions of Actions to Guide the Del Puerto Health Care District (DPHCD) forward to 
develop an updated “Strategic Master Plan 2030” in the Summer of 2024. 
 
DPHCD (The District) Board and Manager Participants on May 16, 2024, developed the following 
collection of suggested actions to be accomplished in the Next 9 Days, the Next 9 Weeks, and the Next 9 
months. This is a draft with recommendations shared in random order. It can be refined in June. 
 
 

Actions for the Next 9 Days should be:  
 

1. Prepare a summary of today’s discussions and conclusions for review and discussion at the June 
3 Board Meeting 

2. Establish a date for the Annual District Health Fair/BBQ to build our brand and gather inputs 
from the communities we serve 

3. Outline a process to study the needs for expanded Mental Health services in the District, i 
o create a directory of currently available Mental Health Providers/Service programs 

4. Commit to establish signage for the Apricot Fiesta to invite inputs to our plans via  
o “Let’s Talk…” and  
o “What are the Issues You See in the Health Care District” 
o Celebrate our Board Members bios and photos at Apricot Fiesta 

5. Send Summary of Survey to Community Member respondents 
6. Prepare a calendar for community agency speakers at the District Board meetings for 

remainder of calendar 2024 
o Ask board members what community agencies they want to hear from 

7. Make a list of key organizations (and their leader contacts) we hope to partner with 
8. Develop scope of work for part-time Grant writer  

o Contact HCDs about their grant writers 
9. Establish a small Task Force of Community Engagement Groups to discern and 

recommend how to engage with their populations 
o Promotores (Hispanic) 

72/74



PROPOSED 999 ACTION PLAN FOR DPHCD FROM MAY 16, 2024 2 

 

o School District (youth and families) 
o Hammon Senior Center (seniors) 
o Pastors Council (churches) 
o Other… 

10. Celebrate and communicate our new logo/brand to the community 
o Newspaper article 5/30 
o Back of Apricot Fiesta (program) 
o Large logo sign on gate 
o Postcard to households 
o Promote new branding via major social media campaign 

11. Any others? 
 

Actions for the Next 9 Weeks (May – July): 
 

1. Set aside the $100,000 to fuel expanded collaboration in the community for health 
enhancements and partnering, and form  a task force to work with management on 
targeting grant making to prime-pump of community relationships for health gains 

a. Create grant making policies 
b. Look to LHE to match funding 
c. Create grant RFP for outcome-based programming (Community task force to 

determine priorities?) 
2. Hire Grant Writer to lead our pursuit of philanthropy from public and private sources 

a. Create a preliminary list of grant-making organizations to approach 
3. Recruit, onboard, and celebrate our Fifth District Board Member 
4. “Community Advisory Council” to guide our work in population health and addressing 

the Social Determinates of Health 
5. Contact payers and subspecialists related to the District on strategies/plans for 

telehealth initiatives 
a. Originating point to Specialists 
b. Verify billing components to cover costs of being the originating point 

6. Draft Strategic Plan from our May 16 discussions, with priority actions, investments, and 
accountabilities needed for success 

7. Establish list of organizations, strategies, calendars, and messaging for Community 
presentations by Board and Managers 

8. Identify Sister Health Care Districts to consider for mutually beneficial exchange 
opportunities 

9. Develop Service Level Agreement (SLA) between Health Center and Ambulance Teams 
(needs and expectations; can be shared with staff of both sides 

73/74



PROPOSED 999 ACTION PLAN FOR DPHCD FROM MAY 16, 2024 3 

 

10. Establish strategy to build community partnerships (captured in Memoranda of 
Collaborations) with public agencies and private organizations to advance our plans and 
programs (comprehensive directory of their decision-makers_ 

11. Connect with Schools for Back to school event in August  - Back to School Block Party 
12. Develop calendar and game-plan for community outreach events and who will 

represent us at the events/groups 
a. After event reporting – number of people served, services or training provided, 

staff hours spent,  
b. narrate unique stories that result from our participation 

13. Establish date and event plan to celebrate the opening of the imaging center 
(September) 

14. Recruit county physicians for pt or ft roles in health center 
15. Contact SacState to administer community health needs assessment update 
16. Others? 

 
Goals for the Next Nine Months (June-March): 
 

1. GOAL Establish Telehealth programming for various specialties within our Health Center 
2. Establish and promote our Annual Health Fair for next few years 
3. Secure commitments for funding from Prop 1 
4. Establish a Mental Health access and promotion program in partnership with other 

providers and the County 
5. Celebrate a series of successful community engagement events 
6. Review staff assignments for our plans, and assess Progress to Plan and publish updated 

Strategic Plan version before Fiscal Year July 2025- June 2026 begins 
7. Establish Community Advisory Council/Committee to guide our work in population 

health and health gains 
8. Secure property for Health Park Campus Master Plan 
9. Assign a person to draft our strategy to secure Prop 1 Funding from County  
10. Develop waiting list of talented District Board Members 
11. Update our Community Health Needs Study to shape our updated Strategic Master Plan 

for 2030 
12. Actively engage Board members in Community Relationships and Partnerships 

a. List of community groups 
13. Celebrate new DPHCD providers serving in our District 
14. Make positive headlines in all media that we are walking-the-talk of our bold plans and 

capital investments 
15. Survey public on their knowledge of, and support for District activities 
16. Establish new partnerships for many of our services and technologies 
17. Others? 

74/74


	_2024-06-03 Board Agenda
	8A 2024-04-29 Board Meeting Minutes
	9B 2024-08 Opposition to CA Initiative 1935
	9B1 CSDA_Analysis-Initiative-1935_022324
	9C1 NSDC_HR-7525-Fact-Sheet_031424
	9D. 2024 SR ELECTIONS RESOLUTIONS
	9D. 2024-05 Calling for Election
	9E. 2024-06 Consolidating with StanCounty Election
	9F. 2024-07 Candidate Statements
	9G FY24-25 Capital Requests Coversheet
	9G1 FY24-25 Capital Requests 52424a
	20240531162518211

	10B2. 2024-04 PDA KPI
	10C HC Board Report April 2024 final
	10D HR Report May 24
	10D Monthly Anniversary Report - May 2024 final
	10E Leg Report
	11. 999 Actions for Strategic Thinking and Planning 2024 R2
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



